
DeSoto Hardee Highlands Okeechobee & Polk Counties 

 

Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
Agenda 

December 9, 2015  
Bartow Public Library 

2nd Floor Conference Room 
2150 South Broadway Avenue 

Bartow, FL  33830 
9:30 a.m. 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Buddy Mansfield 
 

• Invocation 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Announcements – Introduction of CFRPC Staff 

 
AGENDA ITEM #1   PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2   COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION 
 
A.  October 14, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes  
B.  October Financial Report 
C.  Final Budget for FY 2014-15 
D.  Disposal of Council Vehicle  
 

• Action Recommended:  Approval for Each 
• Exhibit #2: A. Minutes  

B. Financial Report 
C.  Final Budget for 2014-15 
D. Disposal of 2000 Dodge Van 
 

AGENDA ITEM #3   PUBLIC HEARING FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT 
ADMINISTRATION (FTA) GRANTS 
 
Staff has prepared the FY 2016 FTA Capital Grants for the programs listed below.  This public 
hearing has been advertised and will only be held if requested. 
 
A.  5311 Capital Grant for Mobility Management 
B.  5310 Capital Grant for Vehicles 
C.  5336 Capital Grant for Vehicles 
   

• Action Recommended:  Hold Public Hearing if Requested 
• Exhibit:  None 

 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 1



AGENDA ITEM #4  TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM OVERVIEW AND GRANT 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
Staff will describe each program and funding source, and request adoption of resolutions 
associated with each program. 
 

• Action Recommended:  Adopt Each Resolution 
• Exhibit #4:   A.  Resolution  2015-12A, 5311 Capital Grant      

   B.  Resolution  2015-12B, 5311 Operating Grant  
  C.  Resolution  2015-12C, 5310 Operating Grant  

D.  Resolution  2015-12D, 5310 Capital Grant 
E.  Resolution 2015-12E 5339 Capital Grant 

 
AGENDA ITEM #5  FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (FDOT) 
PRESENTATION ON FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION 
 
Keith Robbins, District Freight Coordinator, Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
District 1, will provide a brief overview of key freight issues and opportunities in the region. 
 

• Action Recommended:  Information Only 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #6  FLORIDA TRANSPORTATION PLAN (FTP) AND STRATEGIC 
INTERMODAL SYSTEM (SIS) PLAN UPDATE 
 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District 1 staff will provide information regarding 
Florida’s long range plans for the future of transportation. 
 

• Action Recommended:  Information Only 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #7  HEARTLAND REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION (HRTPO) ACTIVITIES 
 
Staff will brief the Council on activities of the six-county Heartland Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization (HRTPO). 

• Action Recommended:  Information Only 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #8  COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
REPORT (CEDS)   
 
The CFRPC serves as the Central Florida Economic Development District as designated by the 
U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA).  The CEDS document which is a 
requirement of EDA, has been updated and approved for posting by the Council for public 
comments.  The public comment period is closed and no comments were received.   

• Action Recommended:  Adopt Updated CEDS Report 
• Exhibit #8:  2015 Updated CEDS Changes 

 
 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 2



AGENDA ITEM #9  EAST LAKE PARKER/WEST NORTH COMBEE AREAWIDE 
PLAN PRESENTATION 

A Brownfields Areawide Planning Grant was awarded to the CFRPC by the US Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA) for East Lake Parker – West North Combee area (with the catalyst site 
in the City of Lakeland surrounded by unincorporated Polk County) to develop an Areawide Plan 
and implementation strategies.  The completed East Lake Parker/West North Combee Areawide 
Plan provides a foundation for future assessment, cleanup, and reuse of brownfields properties to 
promote areawide revitalization and economic development.  The Plan was developed through 
extensive community-based involvement and is the recipient of the 2015 Innovation Award from 
the National Association of Development Organizations (NADO). 

• Action Recommended:  Information Only 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #10   ELECTION OF COUNCIL OFFICERS FOR 2016 
 
A committee to nominate a Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council for 2016 was appointed 
at last month’s Council Meeting.  Those appointed were:  DeSoto County Gubernatorial 
Appointee Jackie Tucker, Bartow City Commissioner Pat Huff and Highlands County 
Commissioner Don Elwell. The Committee is scheduled to meet at 9:00 a.m. on December 9, 
2015, just prior to the Council meeting, to consider their nominations, and those nominations 
will be made at the Council Meeting which begins at 9:30 a.m. 

• Action Recommended:  A.  Elect Officers for 2016 
    B.  Authorization for Banking Signatories of Officers and 

Executive Director 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #11  APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE FLORIDA REGIONAL 
COUNCILS ASSOCIATION (FRCA) POLICY BOARD 
 
The newly elected Chairman will appoint three members and an alternate to serve on the FRCA 
Policy Board for 2016. 
 

• Action Recommended:  Appoint Members 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
AGENDA ITEM #12  APPOINT MEMBERS TO FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
The Chairman will appoint members to serve as the Council’s Finance Committee for 2016. 
 

• Action Recommended:  Appoint Members 
• Exhibit:  None 

 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #13  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
The Executive Director will report on current work activities. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 3



 

•  Action Recommended:  Information Only 
•  Exhibit:  None    

 
AGENDA ITEM #14   OTHER BUSINESS 
 
A. Set date, time, and location for next meeting. 
B. Other Business 
 
ADJOURN 
 

 

 

Staff Will Treat Council Members to  
Homemade Christmas Goodies! 

     

Merry Christmas  &   Happy New Year! 
 

 

 

 

Please be advised that if you desire to appeal any decisions made as a result of the above hearing or meeting, you will need a record of the 
proceedings and in some cases a verbatim record is required.  You must make your own arrangements to produce this record (Florida Statute 
286.0105).  The Central Florida Regional Planning Council conducts business in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
other nondiscrimination laws.  Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, familial, 
or income status.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to 
participate in this proceeding should contact Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director, 555 E. Church Street, Bartow, FL 863-534-7130 x 130 within 
two working days of receipt of this notification.” If hearing impaired call:  (TDD) 1-800-955-8771 or voice impaired call:  1-800-955-8770 via 
Florida Relay Service. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 4



October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes 1 

Central Florida Regional Planning Council 
October 14, 2015 

Okeechobee County Courthouse 
County Commission Chambers 

304 NW 2nd Street 
Okeechobee, FL   

9:30 a.m. 

Meeting Minutes 

Chairman Buddy Mansfield called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m.  Norman White led the Council 
in prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance.  Roll was called and the following members were present. 

CFRPC Chairman Commissioner Buddy Mansfield, DeSoto County 
CFRPC Vice-Chairman, Commissioner Edie Yates, City of Lakeland 
City Councilman Joe Fink, City of Arcadia 
Jackie Tucker, DeSoto County Gubernatorial Appointee 
Commissioner Mike Thompson, Hardee County 
City Councilwoman Neda Cobb, City of Wauchula  
Chet Huddleston, Hardee County Gubernatorial Appointee 
Commissioner Don Elwell, Highlands County 
Commissioner Bryant Culpepper, Okeechobee County 
City Commissioner, Mike O’Connor, City of Okeechobee 
Elvie Posey, Okeechobee County Gubernatorial Appointee 
Commissioner Melony Bell, Polk County 
City Commissioner Pat Huff, City of Bartow and Ridge League of Cities 
Hazel Sellers, Polk County Gubernatorial Appointee and School Board 
Jeff Kincart, Polk County Gubernatorial Appointee 
Earl Hahn, DeSoto County Planning Director, Ex-officio 
Elizabeth “Libby” Maxwell, South Florida Water Management District, Ex-officio 
Jeff Diemer for Jennifer Stults, Florida Department of Transportation, Ex-officio 

Members absent: 
City Councilman John Shoop, Sebring Mayor 
Donna Howerton, Highlands County Gubernatorial Appointee and School Board 
City Commissioner, J.P. Powell, Winter Haven 
Todd Miller, Hardee County Planning Director, Ex-officio 
Ben Dunn, Highlands County Development Services Director, Ex-officio 
Bill Royce, Okeechobee County Planning Director, Ex-officio 
Tom Deardorff, Polk County Director of Growth Management, Ex-officio 
Jim Golden, Southwest Florida Water Management District, Ex-officio 
Mary Yeargan, Department of Environmental Protection. Ex-officio 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 5



 

October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes  2  
 

 
 
Announcements  
 
Mike O’Connor introduced Okeechobee City Councilman Dowling Watford.  Dowling Watford is a 
former member of the CFRPC, serving in the 1980s, and currently holds the record as the longest 
siting City Councilman for the City of Okeechobee. 
 
Pat Steed thanked Okeechobee County for hosting the CFRPC Meeting. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #1  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chairman Mansfield opened the public comment period.  The public comment period closed with 
no comments. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #2  COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION 
 

August 12, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes 
 
Chairman Mansfield asked if there were any corrections to the August 12, 2015 Council Meeting 
Minutes. 
 
MOTION 
 
There being none, Elvie Posey moved to approve the Council Meeting Minutes as submitted.       
Chet Huddleston seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #3  OKEECHOBEE COUNTY ACTIVITIES UPDATE   
 
Robbie Chartier, Okeechobee County Administrator, reported on current economic development 
projects in Okeechobee County, including Florida Power & Light (FP&L) clean energy plant 
proposed to be located in northern Okeechobee County.  It is a $1.2 billion investment by FP&L 
and will create between 300 and 650 jobs during the two year construction period.  The overall 
economic impact to the community beyond the construction period is expected to be approximately 
$500 million.  New tax revenues are also expected from this project to the County, school district 
and the water management district.  In addition, FP&L’s natural gas pipeline project is proposed to 
come through Okeechobee County and is expected to have a $36 million economic impact in the 
first year.  Ms. Chartier reported on the Guy Harvey Outpost proposed for the Okee-Tantie area of 
Okeechobee.  The Guy Harvey Outpost is a $19 million project that will include 400 campsites, a 
restaurant, retail shopping, boat storage, a clubhouse, and a lazy river.  Ms. Chartier mentioned 
other retail projects expected to be located in Okeechobee, such as a Zaxbys Restaurant, a bakery 
and an auto parts store.  These businesses will create new jobs in the County.  Ms. Chartier reported 
on the Wooden Jungle Park project, which is a capital project in Okeechobee that has swamp 
buggies, airboats and mud buggies.  Okeechobee County is also working on wetland mitigation 
issues at their airport and  on a sidewalk masterplan project.      
 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 6



 

October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes  3  
 

 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM #4  FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
A.  Final Amended Budget for FY 2014-15. 
 
Pat Steed stated that the Finance Committee met on October 7, 2015, in Sebring.  At that meeting 
the Council’s auditor, CliftonLarsonAllen discussed the upcoming annual audit, which is expected 
to begin in early November.  The Finance Committee reviewed the final amended budget for FY 
2014-15 and is recommending its approval.  Ms. Steed reviewed the Final Amended Budget for FY 
2014-15 with the Council. 
 
MOTION 
 
Pat Huff moved to approve the Final Amended Budget for FY 2014-15 as presented and 
recommended by the Finance Committee.  Jackie Tucker seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.   
 
B.  Recommend FY 2015-16 Pay Adjustment Effective Oct 1, 2015. 
 
Ms. Steed explained that the employee salary adjustment was inadvertently put in the budget to 
become effective on October 5, 2015.  However, the correct effective date was meant to be October 
1, 2015.  She recommended that be corrected in the budget. 
 
MOTION 
 
Don Elwell moved to accept staff’s recommendation to change the employee salary adjustment 
effective date from October 5, 2015 to October 1, 2015.  Chet Huddleston seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #5  CONTRACT  FOR  TECHNOLOGY  SERVICES 

Pat Steed stated that the Council utilizes an information technology company to provide support to 
the office computer system and network.  She recommended continuing services with Cipher 
Integration, Inc. for a twelve month contract period of October 1, 2015 through September 30, 
2016. 

MOTION 

Mike O’Connor moved to approve the Contract with Cipher Integration, Inc. as presented.  Hazel 
Sellers seconded. 

Edie Yates abstained from voting, stating that her son was the owner of Cipher Integration, Inc. 

Motion carried. 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 7



 

October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes  4  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM #6  CONTRACT  WITH  THE  STATE  OF  FLORIDA  DEPARTMENT 
OF  ECONOMIC  OPPORTUNITY  FOR  COMMUNITY  PLANNING  TECHNICAL 
ASSISTANCE  GRANT 

Pat Steed stated that the Council has been awarded a FY 15/16 Community Planning Technical 
Assistance Grant by the State of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO).  The grant 
award allows for the development of comprehensive plan amendments required to address the 
newly formed Heartland Regional Transportation Planning Organization (HRTPO) for twelve local 
governments in the HRTPO area.  Council staff will draft the policy language for the 
comprehensive plan amendments and work with the local governments to update their 
comprehensive plans.  Discussion followed. 

MOTION 

Melony Bell moved to approve the contract with DEO and authorize the Executive Director to 
execute the grant agreement.  Pat Huff seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #7  TRANSPORTATION  DISADVANTAGED  PROGRAM  UPDATE 
 
Marcia Staszko explained that every five years the Transportation Disadvantaged Program is 
required to conduct a Request for Proposals process to select a Community Transportation 
Coordinator (CTC).  Earlier this year a new CTC was selected by the Council, and their 
recommendation was forwarded to the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged for the 
final decision.  The current CTC filed a protest to that decision which caused a delay in the schedule 
for transition to a new CTC.  The protest was ultimately withdrawn and the current CTC is working 
with the incoming CTC for a smooth transition.  The new CTC, MV Transportation, will take over 
on November 1, 2015.  Ms. Staszko announced that a Meet-and-Greet event has been scheduled for 
October 20, 2015 in Highlands County at the CareerSource Heartland at 10:00 a.m. 

  
AGENDA ITEM #8  STATUS  REPORT  FOR  THE  HEARTLAND  REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION  PLANNING  ORGANIZATION  (HRTPO) 
 
Pat Steed reported on recent activities of the HRTPO.  The HRTPO Technical Advisory Committee 
has conducted two meetings with good participation from local government technical staff, and 
three HRTPO meetings have been held to date.  Staff is handling many activities simultaneously, 
such as technical modeling, policy writing, public involvement and compliance with grant 
requirements.  Staff has met with representatives from all six HRTPO counties to discuss 
transportation projects in their municipalities that they have identified as needed in their county.  
She added that staff has conducted public participation workshops with focus groups of individuals 
who are not typically involved at the planning level, to obtain their input.  Ms. Steed distributed 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 8



 

October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes  5  
 

flyers for the next workshop planned for November 5, 2015 in Sebring and invited members to visit 
the www.heartlandregionaltpo.org website. 

Ms. Steed reported that because of this year’s accelerated legislative session, FDOT will be 
conducting ePublic Hearings online regarding their Tentative Five Year Work Plan.  FDOT will not 
be conducting their public hearing at the December Council Meeting this year.    

AGENDA ITEM #9  COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
(CEDS)  
 
Shannon Brett stated that the CFRPC serves as the Central Florida Economic Development District 
as designated by the U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA) since the 1970s.  Showing 
a PowerPoint presentation, she reviewed the updated CEDS document, which is required by EDA to 
be revised every five years, and can be updated annually.  This was an annual update.  Ms. Brett 
pointed out that the CEDS document has been reviewed and approved by the CEDS Committee.  
Ms. Brett reviewed the updated statistical information as well as pointing out the key projects listed 
in the CEDS document.  

MOTION 
 
Chet Huddleston moved to approve the Draft CEDS Document for Public Comment.  Edie Yates 
seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Brett stated that at the August Council Meeting, the Council recommended additional members 
be added to the CEDS Committee for consideration.  She presented the updated list of CEDS 
Committee Members for Council approval.  
 
MOTION 
 
Mike Thompson moved to approve the updated list of CEDS Committee Members as presented.  
Edie Yates seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AGENDA ITEM #10  2016 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 
 
Pat Steed presented the proposed 2016 Holiday Schedule and stated that the office will be closed on 
the scheduled dates in recognition of these holidays. 

MOTION 
 
Jackie Tucker moved to approve the 2016 Holiday Schedule as presented.  Don Elwell seconded. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 9

http://www.heartlandregionaltpo.org/


 

October 14, 2015, Council Meeting Minutes  6  
 

AGENDA ITEM #11  APPOINT COMMITTEE TO NOMINATE OFFICERS FOR 2016 
 
Chairman Buddy Mansfield appointed Jackie Tucker, Pat Huff, and Don Elwell to serve as the 
Nominating Committee.    The Nominating Committee will meet on December 9, 2015 at 9:00 a.m., 
just prior to the Council Meeting, to nominate a member to serve as Chairman of the CFRPC in 
2016. 

AGENDA ITEM #12  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Pat Steed distributed a two page informational sheet about the Council and its programs and 
projects, including its mission, funding information and awards and recognitions. 

Ms. Steed showed a PowerPoint presentation about the Florida Regional Councils Association 
(FRCA).  Last year the legislature reconfigured Florida’s RPCs from 11 to ten, with the neighboring 
RPCs absorbing the counties from the one that was disbanded.  Ms. Steed reviewed core activities 
that all Florida RPCs are responsible for conducting in their region, including economic 
development, regional planning, community development, transportation planning and emergency 
preparedness.   RPCs have other activities that differ because of location, the needs of its local 
governments and the needs of its citizens.  She reviewed a few of the programs and activities that 
each RPC conducts for its region.   

Melony Bell referred to the Regional Leadership Academy which is being conducted by the 
Northeast Florida RPC, and asked if the Central Florida RPC could sponsor a program such as this.  
She felt it would promote regionalism and would share beneficial information between the Counties 
and Cities in the region. 

Ms. Steed thought that was a good recommendation and would put together information and ideas 
to move it forward. 

Ms. Steed recognized Pat Huff for being appointed to the Path Forward Committee, which is a 
working group of the FRCA Policy Board. 

Ms. Steed also recognized Chet Huddleston, Gubernatorial Appointee from Hardee County, for his 
recent appointment as Hardee County Supervisor of Elections. 

AGENDA ITEM #13   OTHER BUSINESS 

The next meeting was scheduled for December 9, 2015 in Bartow at the Bartow Public Library at 
9:30 a.m.   

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

      Respectfully submitted, 

      _____________________________________________________  
      Commissioner Buddy Mansfield, Chairman  
      October 14, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 

EXHIBIT 2A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 10



UNAUDITED October = 8%

ACCRUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED ACCRUAL

October 2015 October 2015 Budget % of Budget

ORDINARY INCOME/EXPENSE
INCOME

1 Use of Prior Year Surplus -$  -$  -$  0%
2 Member Assessments 51,560 - 206,240 25%
3 Local Revenue 58,217 59,841 735,145 8%
4 State Revenue 1,725 27,686 234,627 1%
5 Federal Revenue 44,712 122,486 2,501,401 2%
6 TOTAL INCOME 156,214 210,013 3,677,413 4%

7 EXPENSE
8 Salaries & Fringe Benefits 102,619 102,619 1,517,982 7%
9 Consultants 9,531 6,239 295,510 3%
10 Transportation for the Disadvantaged Trips - 31,575 952,000 0%
11 BrownfieldsRLF - Pass Through - - 575,000 0%
12 Accounting/Payroll Services 102 102 2,500 4%
13 Advertising 205 146 4,000 5%
14 Audit - - 19,425 0%
15 Auto Expense 1,317 1,378 15,000 9%
16 Building Security - - 450 0%
17 Dues & Fees 5,325 5,820 36,000 15%
18 Equipment Expense 1,164 1,373 18,000 6%
19 File Management 812 812 4,000 20%
20 Insurance 848 848 32,000 3%
21 Janitorial/Maintenance 1,312 1,312 12,000 11%
22 Legal Fees 3,384 3,384 29,046 12%
23 Meeting Expense 36 658 5,000 1%
24 Miscellaneous - - 1,000 0%
25 Office Supplies 1,566 1,798 15,000 10%
26 Postage & Delivery - - 5,000 0%
27 Printing - - 4,000 0%
28 Repair & Maintenance 175 351 6,500 3%
29 Technology Supplies 50 55 18,000 0%
30 Telephone 1,029 1,011 8,000 13%
31 Travel & Registration Fees 1,029 3,245 55,000 2%
32 Utilities 746 746 12,000 6%
33 Capital Outlay - Office & Technology - - 35,000 0%
34 TOTAL EXPENSE 131,250$           163,473$           3,677,413$   4%
35
36 INCOME OVER (UNDER) EXPENSE 24,964$             46,540$             -$             

CASH ON HAND 10/31/2015
Checking Account + Petty Cash 198,528$           
Cash Held in Reserve:

Money Market Account 262,828$           
Local Govt Investment Pool 8,789$  

Total Cash 470,144$           

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES    FY 2015-2016

For the Month Ended October 31, 2015

EXHIBIT 2B

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 11



ACCRUAL

ASSETS

1 Cash 198,416$        
2 Petty Cash 112 
3 Accounts Receivable 463,046 
4 Unbilled Costs 219,677 
5 Prepaid Expenses 38,419 
6 Fixed Assets 609,988 
7 Funds Held in Reserve 271,616 
8
9 TOTAL ASSETS 1,801,275$     

10
11 LIABILITIES & EQUITY
12
13 Liabilities
14 Accounts Payable 216,360$        
15 Compensated Absences Liability 105,479 
16 Deferred Revenue 50,326 
17 Total Liabilities 372,165 
18
19 Fund Balance 1,429,109 

20
21 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,801,275$     

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

October 31, 2015

UNAUDITED

EXHIBIT 2B

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 12



Adopted Proposed
Original Final Amended
Budget Budget Final Budget Variance

Revenues:
Member assessments 203,713$     203,712$     203,712$     - 
Local and other 728,678       709,078       697,370       11,708 
State grants and contracts 155,797       140,338       150,619       (10,281)         
Federal grants 2,415,703    1,705,238    1,716,888    (11,650)         

Total revenues 3,503,891    2,758,366 2,768,589    (10,223)         

Expenditures:
Salaries and fringe benefits 1,439,678    1,398,369 1,374,301    24,068 
Consultants 189,988       192,655 219,199       (26,544)         
Subgrants 50,000         183,301 177,299       6,002 
Transportation for the disadvantaged 1,416,582    496,773 532,370       (35,597)         
Accounting and payroll services 2,000           2,104 2,102           2 
Advertising 3,000           2,825 2,883           (58) 
Audit 18,850         17,250 17,250         - 
Auto 15,000         13,843 14,252         (409) 
Building security 450              366 366 0 
Dues and fees 30,000         34,881 33,744         1,137 
Equipment expense 26,000         20,179 21,032         (853) 
File management 4,000           3,234 3,234           (0) 
Insurance 32,000         28,762 28,732         30 
Janitorial 11,000         9,134 9,134           - 
Legal 28,200         33,758 31,408         2,350 
Meeting expense 5,000           4,373 4,745           (372) 
Miscellaneous 1,000           804 804 0 
Office supplies 12,000         12,775 13,056         (281) 
Postage and delivery 3,500           4,998 4,998           (0) 
Printing 3,000           3,848 3,848           (0) 
Repair and maintenance 5,000           6,962 7,312           (350) 
Technology supplies and equipment 13,000         17,909 12,854         5,055 
Telephone 8,000           8,798 8,821           (23) 
Travel and registration fees 50,000         43,171 44,072         (901) 
Utilities 10,500         9,363 9,363           (0) 
Capital outlay 126,143       207,931 207,931       0 

Total expenditures 3,503,891    2,758,366 2,785,110    (26,745)         

Net change in fund balance - - (16,522)        16,522 

Fund balance - beginning of year 871,383       871,383 871,383       - 

Fund balance - end of year 871,383$     871,383$     854,861$     16,522$        

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL
GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

EXHIBIT 2C

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 13



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 14



DISPOSAL OF 2000 DODGE VAN 

The Council staff recommends that the 2000 Dodge Grand Caravan minivan be disposed of by posting 
for bid on the CFRPC website and notifying by email the 30 local governments in the region of the 
availability of this vehicle. If no bid is received, the vehicle will be sold for salvage value. The vehicle has 
144,217 miles on it. 

• Action Recommended:  Approval to dispose of vehicle

EXHIBIT 2D

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 15



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 16



RESOLUTION 2015 – 12A 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SIGING AND SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION AND 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ASSURANCES TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION, THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE EXPENDITURE OF 

GRANT FUNDS PURSUANT TO A GRANT AWARD. 

WHEREAS, THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL has the authority to apply for 
and accept grants and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the 
Florida Department of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the 
Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, FLORIDA; 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Programs under U.S.C. Section 5311 Capital funds.

2. The submission of a grant application, supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

3. Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award,
and expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015 

 By:  __________________________________ 
Juril O. Mansfield, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ (seal) 

EXHIBIT 4A

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 17



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 18



RESOLUTION 2015 – 12B 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SIGING AND SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION  AND 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ASSURANCES TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION,THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE EXPENDITURE OF  

GRANT FUNDS PURSUANT TO A GRANT AWARD. 

WHEREAS, THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL has the authority to apply for 
and accept grants and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the 
Florida Department of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the 
Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, FLORIDA; 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Programs under U.S.C. Section 5311 Operating Funds

2. The submission of a grant application, supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

3. Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award,
and expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015 

 By:  __________________________________ 
Juril O. Mansfield, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ (seal) 

EXHIBIT 4B

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 19



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 20



RESOLUTION 2015 – 12C 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SIGING AND SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION  AND 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ASSURANCES TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION,THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE EXPENDITURE OF 

GRANT FUNDS PURSUANT TO A GRANT AWARD. 

WHEREAS, THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL has the authority to apply for 
and accept grants and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the 
Florida Department of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the 
Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, FLORIDA; 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Programs under U.S.C. Section 5310 Operating

2. The submission of a grant application, supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

3. Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award,
and expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015 

 By:  __________________________________ 
Juril O. Mansfield, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ (seal) 

EXHIBIT 4C

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 21



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 22



RESOLUTION 2015 – 12D 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SIGING AND SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION  AND 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ASSURANCES TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION,THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE PURCHASE OF 

 VEHICLES AND/OR EQUIPMENT AND/OR THE EXPENDITURE OF 
GRANT FUNDS PURSUANT TO A GRANT AWARD. 

WHEREAS, THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL has the authority to apply for 
and accept grants and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the 
Florida Department of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the 
Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, FLORIDA; 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Programs under U.S.C. Section 5310 Capital Funds

2. The submission of a grant application, supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

3. Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award,
purchase vehicles/equipment and/or expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless
specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015 

 By:  __________________________________ 
Juril O. Mansfield, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ (seal) 

EXHIBIT 4D

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 23



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 24



RESOLUTION 2015 – 12E 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZING THE SIGING AND SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION AND 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AND ASSURANCES TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION, THE ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT AWARD FROM THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND THE EXPENDITURE OF 

GRANT FUNDS PURSUANT TO A GRANT AWARD. 

WHEREAS, THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL has the authority to apply for 
and accept grants and make purchases and/or expend funds pursuant to grant awards made by the 
Florida Department of Transportation as authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the 
Federal Transit Administration Act of 1964, as amended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, FLORIDA; 

1. This resolution applies to Federal Programs under U.S.C. Section 5339 Capital funds.

2. The submission of a grant application, supporting documents, and assurances to the Florida
Department of Transportation is approved.

3. Patricia M. Steed, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a grant award,
and expend grant funds pursuant to a grant award, unless specifically rescinded.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 9TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015 

 By:  __________________________________ 
Juril O. Mansfield, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ (seal) 

EXHIBIT 4E

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 25



This page was intentionally left blank. 

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 26



Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Update for 2015 

The draft updated CEDS was posted for public comment for 30 days and no comments were 
received.  Changes incorporated into the updated plan include Economic Resiliency, Key 
Projects, Opportunities, and the current CEDS Committee Membership.  Staff recommends 
adoption of the Comp0rehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Update for 2015 and 
transmittal to the US Economic Development Administration. 

The complete CEDS document can be viewed at: 
http://www.cfrpc.org/download/publications/CEDS_2012-updated_2015.pdf?fce57f 

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 27

http://www.cfrpc.org/download/publications/CEDS_2012-updated_2015.pdf?fce57f


Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2012 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2012 Update for 2015 

Economic Resilience 

The ability for our region to recover, or prevent damage, from man-made or natural disasters is a 
measure of our economic resilience.  While Florida is at risk to experience any number of man-made or 
natural disasters, historically, tropical storms and hurricanes pose the most significant threat to the 
people of Florida and their economy.  Tropical storms and hurricanes, depending upon intensity, can 
impact Florida with high winds, torrential rain, flooding, tornados, and the interruption of critical 
infrastructure systems such as electricity, roadways, potable water supply, and emergency services.   

While coastal regions focus much of their tropical storm and hurricane preparedness efforts around 
storm surge and coastal flooding, the Central Florida region has uniquely different needs.  Having no 
oceanic coast line, damage from hurricanes impacting the Central Florida region is generally caused by 
the combination of torrential rainfall and high winds.  This combination results in a significant number of 
downed trees causing damage to homes, automobiles and power lines. 

Freshwater flooding poses a significant threat during tropical storms and hurricanes.  The Central Florida 
region is home to many rivers and streams, hundreds of named lakes, and significant land area below 
the 100 year flood zone.  Any structures constructed near or within the flood zone are at risk during a 
major storm event.   

Additionally, according to the 2015 Florida Statewide Regional Evacuation Study Program, the Central 
Florida region has approximately 176,157 people living in approximately 76,056 mobile homes.  Mobile 
homes, particularly those constructed prior to 1978, are at higher risk of severe damage from high 
winds, flooding, and downed trees than site-built homes because they are constructed according to less 
stringent standards. 

During a coastal hurricane event the Central Florida region must be prepared to endure the impacts of a 
large, short or moderate term, influx of temporary residents migrating inland to seek shelter during a 
coastal evacuation.  The region must be able to provide adequate shelter and services to these 
evacuees. The region must also be able to provide temporary housing to its residents whose homes may 
have been lost or damaged. The region must possess the ability to get permanent housing and 
transportation options online as soon as possible so as to minimize the negative impacts on the local 
economy.   

SWOT Findings 

Strengths: 

• The region is entirely inland with no threat of coastal flooding, unlike the remainder of the State
of Florida.

• Efficient and effective evacuation routes are present throughout the region including Interstate
4, US 17, US 98, US 441, US 27, SR 60, and SR 70, most of which are multi-lane roadways.

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 28



Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2012 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2012 Update for 2015 

Weaknesses: 

• Large areas of rural population with potentially slower emergency response times.
• Vulnerable housing such as mobile homes, which are at risk during a significant storm event.

Opportunities: 

• Short term boost in economic activities during coastal hurricane events due to influx of coastal
residents seeking shelter inland.

Threats: 

• Older and potentially substandard infrastructure, particularly within the Rural Areas of
Economic Opportunity, including potable water systems, storm water systems, and/or septic
tanks in flooded areas.

• Damage to local and high voltage transmission lines, and electric substations.
• Loss of broadband capability, which impacts operations of businesses.
• Loss of housing and infrastructure, which negatively impact local economy.

Resiliency Goals: 

o Maintain regional evacuation plans and assist local governments with evacuation plans.
o Maintain regional economic resilience strategies to mitigate adverse impacts to local economy

as the result of housing and infrastructure loss (including broadband) due to a significant storm
event, and assist local governments with economic resilience strategies.

o Develop and maintain strategies for:
 Providing short-term emergency shelters;
 Providing longer-term temporary housing;
 Providing more rental units for coastal evacuees who do not seek emergency shelter

(which will also support ecotourism in more rural areas of the region). 

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 29



Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2012 47

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

The Tourism & Ecotourism industry cluster overlaps with the Agriculture cluster because of the opportunities 
presented by the Region’s agricultural heritage and resources; for example, the region hosts regular rodeos and is 
home to a number of ranch resorts, connected to the cattle industry.

Key Projects

Table 21 shows the Key Projects and their related Target Clusters identified in the CFRPC region.

Table 21. Key Projects

Name Cluster

RACEC Catalyst Project Life Sciences & Healthcare
Guy Harvey Outpost Tourism and Ecotourism 
Americas Gateway Logistics
Polk Gateway (CSX) Logistics

RACEC Catalyst Project
The purpose of the RACEC (Rural Area of Critical Economic Concern) Catalyst Project is to target future industries, 
locate regional catalyst sites, and improve the sites to meet industry or target company needs, making each site 
a credible economic asset. Sites must be shovel-ready, infrastructure-ready, and readily developable. The Sebring 
Regional Airport and Commerce Park property was selected as a catalyst site, and is undergoing infrastructure 
installations for the construction of a 100-acre medical complex to be located in an adjacent 2,000-acres business 
campus.

In addition, the Sebring Airport runway extension will reduce or eliminate load limitations experienced by current 
users, accommodate the aircraft that are forecast in the most recent Airport Master Plan update, and allow the 
airport to be marketed to larger aircraft users in the area that are currently constrained by the existing runway 
configuration. The current runway length of 5,224 feet limits payload and/or usable fuel loads; the length will be 
extended by 1,476 feet.

Guy Harvey Outpost (Tourism and Eco-Tourism)
The Guy Harvey Outpost is a planned eco-friendly outpost development (redevelopment of the Okee-Tantie 
campground and marina) to include resort amenities such as beach lagoon, docks, boat slips, cabins, pool and 
sports amenities, marina, restaurant, and RV pads.  The 112-acre complex is located on the north shore of Lake 
Okeechobee where the Kissimmee River meets the Lake.  The development will support the tourism and eco-
tourism cluster in the Region.

Americas Gateway (Logistics)
Americas Gateway Logistics Center will be a master-planned, mixed-use, integrated logistics center offering 
advanced manufacturing, distribution centers, an intermodal center, and other transportation/logistics- and 
service-related facilities. It will be located on a 6,700-acre site near Moore Haven in Glades County, owned by Lykes 
Brothers, Inc. and A. Duda & Sons, Inc.

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 30



Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 201248

CENTRAL FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL

Polk Gateway (Logistics)
The Gateway Area in Polk County centers around the new CSX Integrated Logistics Center currently under 
construction.  This area encompasses property lying north and south of State Road 60 in the Cities of Winter Haven 
and Bartow as well as unincorporated Polk County. Properties include Clear Springs, a sector plan with approved 
industrial and research and development entitlements for over 17,000,000 square feet.  It also includes land area 
inclusive of the City of Bartow and the City of Lake Wales Industrial Parks to support the ILC and the Stokes property, 
with over 1,800 acres of industrial and business park future land use that lies within this key logistics center area. 

Figure 28. Key Projects Map

£¤17

!(3

!(1

!(2

!(4
£¤27

£¤27

¬«70

£¤27

¬«60

¬«570

POLK

HENDRY

GLADES

HIGHLANDS

HARDEE

DESOTO

OKEECHOBEE

£¤17

§̈¦4

¬«70

Lake
Okeechobee

CFRPC Region

±

0 25 Miles

Key Projects
(Numbers do not imply priority)

!( Americas Gateway

!( RACEC Catalyst Project1

3

!(

!(

Polk Gateway4

Guy Harvey Outpost2

Opportunities

Hardee County Commerce Park
The Hardee County Commerce Park is a 264-acre shovel-ready commercial/light industrial incentivized development 
located in north central Hardee County.  It is fully supplied with all utilities, including broadband connectivity and 
developable construction sites. It is managed by the Hardee County Industrial Development Authority. In addition, 
a separate off-site facility, the Hardee Technology Park, is being developed two miles south of the Commerce Park 
on US Route 17 for the purpose of expanding technology opportunities in the region.

DeSoto County G. Pierce Wood Memorial Hospital Complex/Business Park

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 31



 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Committee Recommendations 

The following is the list of recommendations for the CEDS Committee.  These recommendations 
comply with the Economic Development Administration’s requirements for committee 
composition.  

Name Agency/Company Represented EDA Criteria 
Public 
Sector 

Private 
Sector 

Todd Parker Arr Maz Custom Chemicals, Inc. Private Sector X 
Spiros Balntas Central Florida Development Council Business Industry 

Economic 
Development  
Private Sector 

X 

Douglas 
Conner 

Clear Springs Land Co. Private Sector X 

Donna 
Doubleday 

Executive Director, CareerSource Heartland Workforce 
Development 

X X 

TBD Mosaic Private Sector 
Business/Industry 

X 

TBD Florida’s Heartland Regional Economic 
Development Initiative 

Business/Industry 
Economic 
Development 

X X 

Tim Texley Century Link Private Sector X 
Michelle 
Boylan 

Highlands County Economic Development 
Council 

Economic 
Development 

X X 

Mike 
Willingham 

Sebring Airport Authority Business Industry X X 

TBD South Florida  State College Educational 
Institution 

X 

Mandy Hines DeSoto County Economic Development 
Office 

Economic 
Development 

X 

Bruce Lyon Winter Haven Economic Development 
Council 

Economic 
Development 

X 

Raymond 
Royce 

Heartland Agricultural Coalition 
Town of Lake Placid Council 

Business Industry  
Local Government 

X X 

Rae Dowling Florida Power & Light Business Industry 
Private Sector 

X 

John Gurney Okeechobee Chamber of Commerce Board Economic 
Development 

X X 

Bill Lambert Hardee County Economic Development Public Sector X 
Jerry Miller Duke Energy Private Sector X 

EXHIBIT 8

12-09-15 Agenda Package Page 32


	12-09-15_CFRPC_Agenda
	AGENDA ITEM #2   COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION
	AGENDA ITEM #14   OTHER BUSINESS
	ADJOURN

	12-09-15_Exhibit_02A_Minutes_from_10-14-15
	12-09-15_Exhibit_02B_Financial_Statement
	Statement of Activities
	Statement of Net Assets

	12-09-15_Exhibit_02C_Final_Budget_2014-15
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_02D_Dodge_Disposal
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_04A_Resolution_2015-12A
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_04B_Resolution_2015-12B
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_04C_Resolution_2015-12C
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_04D_Resolution_2015-12D
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_04E_Resolution_2015-12E
	blank_page
	12-09-15_Exhibit_08_CEDS_Changes
	10-14-15_Exhibit9A_CEDS_Update
	Exhibit 9A1
	Exhibit 9A2

	10-14-15_Exhibit9B_CEDS_Committee_Recommendations




